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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006

(Time Noted – 7:30PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state the request and explain why it should be granted. The Board may then ask questions of the applicant. And then questions or statements from the public will be entertained. After all the public hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; however, the Board has up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask that if anyone with cell phones would please turn them off, so that we wouldn’t have any interruptions.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY










CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

NOTE: ALL MAILINGS FOR ALL THE APPLICANTS WERE IN ORDER.

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006                              (Time Noted – 7:32 PM) 

HL RENTALS      



33 SOUTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(72-13-7.1 & 7.2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback and signage setback to construct a 4760 sq ft office building.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening is HL Rentals, 33 South Plank Road. And, all mailings are in order.

Mr. Lytle: Good evening. The client I am working for is H & L Rentals, it is an existing parcel of property located along … 

Chairperson Cardone: Just for the record, if you would identify yourself, please.

Mr. Lytle: Ken Lytle.

Mr. Lytle: He has an existing parcel of property located along Route 52. He is proposing a 4700 sq ft new building to be installed on that site. In doing so and working back and forth with the Planning Board we will require two variances. The reason for those variances is the Planning Board would like us to put the parking lot in the rear of the building making a better streetscape for the Town, pushing the building much closer to the road than actually the setbacks would allow. We are proposing the building to be 21, 23 feet off the road instead of the 60-foot requirement because it’s on a State Road. Also, in doing so it would require actually the signage for the building would be installed in front of that. Instead of the required 15-foot setback, we would actually looking for a 5 foot setback instead. Does the Board have any comments, questions?  

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: That’s pretty existing in that area, for everything being close.

Mr. Lytle: That is correct. Yes, the existing building on that lot I believe is 21 feet off the required setback in the front and we’re proposing 23 foot to match the existing buildings on either side.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have water and sewer there?

Mr. Lytle: Yes, we do.

Mr. Hughes: Connected?

Mr. Lytle: It will be connected during this.

Chairperson Cardone: And, would it be possible to move the sign a little bit further back or …

Mr. Lytle: We’re still actually plenty of distance off the road, again, because the State Highway is very wide at that point, the right of way. There is a little bit of room, but not much because they don’t want it right up against the building, but at five foot will actually be the ideal spot for it.

Chairperson Cardone: And, the size of the sign?

Mr. Lytle: That square footage will be determined actually by the frontage on the road. We will work that out with the Planning Board at that point.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please stand and state your name and address. There being none, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Lytle: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:36 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006                (Resumption for decision: 9:50 PM)

HL RENTALS      



33 SOUTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(72-13-7.1 & 7.2) B ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On our first application of HL Rentals at 33 South Plank Road seeking an area variance. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Also I would like to read into the record, on this one, the report from Orange County. They had some comments. The first comment; We encourage moving the building forward for this site as it will be more in congruence with the neighboring buildings in terms of setbacks.

2) We recommend the parking lot to be place in the rear of the structure. This will create a more harmonious design and appearance with the surrounding buildings in the direct vicinity.

3) A landscaping plan should be provided, with plantings on all three sides of the building. 

4) An aesthetically pleasing hanging sign with a treated wooden post or similar should be provided. And their recommendation was approval. 

Mr. Donnelly: And those recommendations, I am sure, have also been passed to the Planning Board for consideration. It went before site plan (inaudible). 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I totally agree with what the County said because of that area, you know everything is close to the street to begin with. Putting the parking in the rear is a plus.

Chairperson Cardone: There won’t be any change to the neighborhood and do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Ms. Drake: I second the motion.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor please say Aye.

Aye All

Mr. Donnelly: Let me make one suggestion for a condition, because I found this with other Boards, once you grant this 21 foot front yard setback variance it is a dimension that runs corner to corner across the lot and arguably and you’ll see this in the future. Someone is going to argue when they want to now enlarge the building from side to side that this variance permitted that. Remember then, we are no longer in the context of 185-19 where we are talking about increasing the degree of non-conformity. My suggestion would be to have as a condition something that says the 21-foot front yard variance is granted for the purpose of authorizing construction of an office building of the dimensions of the submitted plans only. No construction other than of this size and dimension shown as authorized by this decision. So that if they wanted to enlarge the building later, they’d have to enlarge the variance to go with it. 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll include that in the motion.

Mr. Donnelly: In the motion, O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion as amended, all those in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response. 

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY









CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

 (Time Noted –  9:55 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006


(Time Noted – 7:37 PM)

FRANK ESPOSITO



343 QUAKER STREET, NBGH







(4-1-9.1) A/R ZONE  

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yard setback of existing single-family residence and construction of a new single family for a two-lot sub-division.                                                                

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Frank Esposito, 343 Quaker Street. All mailings are in order.

Mr. Schisano: Good evening, my name is Rich Schisano, I am representing Frank Esposito. We’re in reference from the Planning Board in regard to a pending two-lot sub-division. We’re here seeking an area, side yard variance. It seems that the existing house on the lot, which was built approximately 1969, was built 20 feet from the existing side yard. This is nothing to do with the sub-division proposed. It is existing, it has been existing, nothing is being changed. It seems that since that house was built the side yard regulations have changed and the Planning Board has seen fit to refer us to the Zoning Board to obtain the appropriate side yard variance. As I have said, we’re not moving any of the lines. The sub-division is on the other side of the property. This is an existing house and an existing side yard. I do have some pictures that I wanted submit to the Board of what the area looks like …

Chairperson Cardone: We have photographs and all Board Members have been to the site.

Mr. Schisano: O.K. Great. O.K, that’s about it.

Mr. Donnelly:  Rich, when did your clients come into title, do you know? 

Mr. Schisano: I know he built the house in 1969 so it was some time prior to that. They actually did build the house in 1969. This is Mr. Esposito’s son; he lives on the property in the double wide, which is going to be removed. What he wanted to do, he’s living there with wife and his child, they wanted to build a house on the property, in order to build the house, the dad was going to sub-divide a piece of property off for him so he could get a mortgage on the property and build his house. They’re going to be removing the double wide, building a house. This variance basically is on the other side of the property. It’s a side yard. 

Mr. McKelvey: Also, the shed is going to be removed.

Mr. Schisano: Yes.

Mr. Donnelly:  I think it’s relevant though that the current owner was entitled before the ordinance was amended to render the building non-conforming and on the self-created hardship that would mean that this is not a self-created hardship.

Chairperson Cardone: If I could just interrupt for a moment, I have an announcement that I neglected to make at the beginning. Some people were earlier when I mentioned that we only have four (4) Board Members tonight and we are a seven (7) Member Board. Four Members constitute a majority. In order for any decision that we reach tonight, in order for anything to be approved all four (4) Board Members would have to agree and vote the same for anything to be approved. If there are any applicants who wish to be heard on a different night, they can be heard next month instead. That’s up to the applicant. Any questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

 (Time Noted – 7:42 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:55 PM)

FRANK ESPOSITO



343 QUAKER STREET, NBGH







(4-1-9.1) A/R ZONE  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Frank Esposito at 343 Quaker Street seeking an area variance for the side yard setback of the existing single family residence and construction of a new single family for a two lot sub-division. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? The variance that was needed was for the existing structure that is already there, that would be on one of the lots.

Ms. Drake: And the proposed house location meets all the other setbacks?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to approve the application.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY









CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:57 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006


(Time Noted – 7:42 PM)

FAJILATUN HUDA


172 BROOKSIDE FARMS ROAD, NBGH






(97-1-15)  IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking a use variance for discontinuance of permitted use of a 1-family residence in an IB Zone to do interior alterations and repairs of house.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Fajiltatun Huda, 172 Brookside Farms Road. All mailings are in order. 

Mr. Huda: Hello, I bought this house from HUD and I just want to do interior and live here. So, that’s what I applied for. Because 2 years no one has used that house, it’s in IB, by default but I have been traveling from New Jersey and I work in Fishkill so I’d like to use that house as my residence. 

Mr. Donnelly: This is an application for a use variance and in order to establish your entitlement to that use variance you need to present dollars and cents proof. In essence, you need to establish that for any of the uses that are permitted in the IB zone, by going down that list that you cannot return a reasonable return on your investment in that property and that you can return, obtain a return on your investment for this property as a single family home as you propose. You have to also show that your hardship is unique and that there are no other properties in that zoning district in that area that suffer the same disadvantage. And, most importantly you need to prove that the hardship is not a self-created one, meaning that you owned the property before the time period that the ordinance came into effect that disqualified the single-family use. When did you buy the property?  

Mr. Huda: Four months before.

Mr. Donnelly: What year?

Mr. Huda: This year, July, I don’t know exactly the month. I don’t remember.

Mr. Donnelly: The month isn’t important, but I think the IB zone requirements that prohibited the single-family use are of rather long standing and if you came into title after they came into effect that would disqualify you from obtaining a use variance. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do you know the last date that someone lived in the house?

Mr. Huda: 2004, I believe, someone.

Chairperson Cardone: So, it has not been used as a residence for the two years?

Mr. Huda: Two years. I did not know that, I found out in the City Hall, they told me it’s two years no one is using that house. But, HUD sold it as a residential house and I bought it from HUD as a residential house. So, I really don’t know what.

Mr. Donnelly:  My suggestion might be, that because there are only four Members this evening and because you may not have put together the dollars and cents proof you need that you asked to have this hearing continued to a future date and perhaps consult an Attorney and maybe someone in the Accounting field that could assist you with putting together a proper application. Cause I don’t know that the proof you have submitted would be legally sufficient for the Board to grant the relief you are asking for and once it is denied, it would be very difficult for you to make that request again. I don’t know how the Board feels about that but I just don’t know whether you have any choice other than to deny it at this point.

Chairperson Cardone: I think that if you feel that we can certainly hold this public hearing open until next month. It is my feeling if you are able to get that proof, as the attorney suggested, and then present that to us next month.

Mr. Huda: Sure. I’ll do that. 

Chairperson Cardone: How do the other Board Members feel?

Mr. Hughes: I think that’s the best advice that you could give the applicant.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion that we hold it over until next month.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe it would be the time, if the attorney could explain to the public about the super majority and the absence of the Members now.

Chairperson Cardone: I did it.

Mr. Donnelly:  I try to comment upon it again. When you have a Board of seven (7) Members to grant a variance you would need four (4) votes. The majority of the Board, not the majority of those present this evening. So, any vote for a variance to be granted tonight would require, in essence, a unanimous vote of the four (4) Members present and therefore, if any applicant as the Chair said earlier would like to have their matter put over to another night when there are more Members present to increase your opportunities for a successful vote, that’s one that the Chair has said the Board would accede to. But, in your case, I think that until you can develop the proof you need even if there were seven Members here I think as a matter of law I’d have to advise the Board that you have not presented the kind of dollars and cents proof that is required. I think you also have a very difficult time on the self created hardship aspect, but perhaps there is something you could speak to an attorney about to develop that argument, I don’t know.

Mr. Huda: Yes, thank you. 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion that we hold it over till next month with this information to be provided to us.

Ms. Drake: I second that motion. 

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor, say aye.

Aye all

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. Huda: Thank you. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY










CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 7:48 PM)

Not read into record yet:

Report from the Orange County Department of Planning

In this case, it is more cost effective to retain the use of the building as residential then to convert it into a business. We think that reoccupying a formerly vacant home will only add to the property in question and the surroundings in a positive way. The applicant intends to renovate a structure that if left unattended could fall into disrepair. The Planning Department recommends granting this use variance on these grounds of local determination that it could improve the surrounding area if the house if renovated in a quality fashion.  Local Determination.

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006


(Time Noted – 7:49 PM)

CHRISTIAN KELLY


39 NEW ROAD, NBGH






(34-2-16)      B  ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback of existing single-family residence for a three-lot sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Christian Kelly, 39 New Road. 

Mr. Brown: I’m Charles Brown of Taconic Design here to represent Chris Kelly who couldn’t be here tonight because he had a baby last night. This application is the result of a three-lot sub-division in the B zone. As part of that sub-division we are transferring 25 foot from the centerline of the existing road to the Town, which is typical of providing Town right of way. In doing so, the building would be 38 feet from the front yard where 40 foot is required, so we need a front yard setback variance of two (2) feet, which is minor. This residence has been existing, my client lives in it. He’s proposing a sub-division for his own use. The building predates, it’s been there quite some time. It is serviced by Town water, which is not a self-created hardship. It will have no effect on the neighborhood because again the building is existing and that sums it up.

Mr. Donnelly: When did your client come into title to it?

Mr. Brown: I’m sorry?

Mr. Donnelly: When did your client come into title?

Mr. Brown: Oh, he’s had it for four or five years, I believe.

Mr. Donnelly: And, after the Ordinance?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: What do you mean when you say he is creating a subdivision for himself?

Mr. Brown: This is a B zone parcel, he has his own business, the lot right behind the house is where he is going to put a building for his business.

Chairperson Cardone: And what type of business is that?

Mr. Brown: He does, he assists in renovations of historic buildings, builds windows and stuff like that. 

Mr. Hughes: Is this entire parcel commercial?

Mr. Brown: Well B zone, yes. It backs up to the R-2 and the R-2 zone is right across the street.

Mr. Hughes: When you calculated these footages, the square footages for these lots, there is a Central Hudson right of way that runs right through there that has to be deducted from those formulas. There’s nothing that can be built in those areas.

Mr. Brown: For the actual lot areas, New Windsor does deduct the right of ways; the Town of Newburgh doesn’t. They do have something in there for build able area, but ... 

Mr. Hughes: I am talking about State Law, not Municipal Law. So, to me I don’t see that you have the footages if you deduct all this area here and maybe I’ll refer you to Counsel, maybe he can enlighten us a little.

Mr. Donnelly: Well State Law doesn’t have a mandatory requirement to deduct easement areas or steep slopes or wetlands or anything of the kind. When it comes to easements that are private in nature and this is a utility easement so it’s a little different, but generally private easements are matters that Planning Boards are supposed to disregard. There is a fair amount on that Law; the idea is you change the leverage for the applicant to be able to purchase the easement back if you hold up their approval. Public easements are a little bit different. The Town of Newburgh Zoning Code does have a reference to net build able area in its definition but it is not incorporated anywhere else into the Ordinance, in either the sub-division regulations or the Zoning Ordinance. The Planning Board has made a recommendation to do so to the Town Board as they complete the Master Plan and the new Zoning Ordinance process. Right now it’s a definition that doesn’t connect to anything with rare exception for Senior Family housing site plans there is a net build able area calculation but it would not apply to this single-family and commercial lot. So while this may be an issue in the future if the Ordinances change, right now the definition and I know what you’re thinking, you read the definition and it sounds like it means something.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, that what I thought.

Mr. Donnelly: The definition was written but not incorporated elsewhere in the Ordinance. In any event, it would be a Planning Board issue for the sub-division to be reviewed when it returns to them. The nature of the variance requested here is the protection of 185-19 in your prior precedent is lost upon this sub-division and a variance is needed to re-cast that protection from that of 185-19 to the grant of a variance. If you wish, we could note in the decision, if you get there, that you note that there are utility easements that may affect the sub-divide ability of the lot but I don’t think you need to rule on that issue because it’s a Planning Board issue.

Mr. Brown: The required lot area in the B Zone with sewer is only 15,000 sq ft too. So, we are substantially over that …

Chairperson Cardone: Could you please talk into the microphone because we’re recording it and it records directly into the machine.

Mr. Brown: The required lot area for the B Zone lots with town water is only 15,000 sq ft. The proposed two lots, one is 43,800 and the other is 50,000 so they’re well in excess of what’s required. For the existing residence, it’s 17,500 sq ft required and we’re providing 31,000 sq ft. I’m pretty sure that would meet if we were to deduct the easement and I could always check that but again that’s not something that is stipulated in the Code.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I have one. In the package they reference relocating the Zoning Line like in the SEQRA form …

Mr. Brown: We have a …

Ms. Drake: Is there any … go ahead and speak …

Mr. Brown: We have an application before the Town Board right now to make the proposed rear lot R-2. It would have no effect on this application for the variance.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Brown: We are proceeding with this sub-division under the B regulations because again this is for a zoned use. His intent is again to build a building for his business on the center lot and then a new residence for himself on the rear lot if the Zoning change does go through. 

Ms. Drake: And then, the other question that I had is will there be any signs on the road for the commercial lot on the existing, put up there on the existing lot?

Mr. Brown: No, not at this time, there is nothing proposed like that. His business is not a business where clients come to his shop. So, he doesn’t have the need of a sign.

Ms. Drake: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes, please step up to the microphone or it can be passed back to you. State your name and address.

Neighbor #1: My name is Neighbor #1,            Road, I apologize I was having a little difficulty hearing so maybe my question has already been answered but my only question would be if this variance is granted for three-lot sub-division what type of buildings would be allowed to be built there?

Mr. Donnelly: The variance is not to allow the three-lot sub-division. The variance is to allow the front yard setback of 38 feet to continue to be protected if the sub-division is granted. The Planning Board will consider, has begun to consider whether the sub-division can be granted. But the grant of this variance doesn’t guarantee that the Planning Board will grant the three-lot sub-division. But in answer to your question I think the other lots are proposed for, if I am not mistaken, one other single-family house in a commercial use?

Mr. Brown: Correct. And, through the Planning Board process there will also be a public hearing where all the elements of the proposed sub-division itself would be brought out and you would be able to comment on those at that time.

Neighbor #1: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: The Planning Board is the only one who can do the sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: We are only considering the current house that is there right now.

Neighbor #1: O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:59 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 9:58 PM)

CHRISTIAN KELLY


39 NEW ROAD, NBGH






(34-2-16)      B  ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Christian Kelly, 39 New Road seeking an area variance for the front yard setback of existing single family residence for a three lot sub-division. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. And I would just remind the Board, that this variance was for the existing structure, for the lot with the existing structure. 

Mr. Hughes: This is the one with the power lines through two of the three parcels that are proposed?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: And, I’d like to condition or caveat this approval if it gets to that point to look into that when it gets to the Planning Board stage about the build ability, if that’s the word. 

Chairperson Cardone: And that would be a recommendation from this Board for them to look into that.

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hm. Just so we are in compliance with State and the right of ways.

Mr. Donnelly: I’ll put it in the decision.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Second?

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. Donnelly: This one did not need a County referral, correct?

Ms. Drake: No.

Chairperson Cardone: Wait, yes, excuse me, we did receive it and it was it will not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhood.

(Note: from Betty Gennarelli, ZBA Secretary … this was not set to Orange County Department of Planning by the ZBA Office, if it was, perhaps the Planning Board sent it, I do not have a record of it being sent or of a response) 
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(Time Noted – 10:01PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006


(Time Noted – 7:59 PM)

JOHN MC MORROW


162 ROUTE 17K, NBGH







(94-1-61) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback for an existing building to enlarge the existing building and construct a new building. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is John Mc Morrow, 162 Route 17K. 

Mr. Brown: This variance request again is a referral from the Planning Board. The subject parcel is a commercial parcel in the IB zone. There is a site plan application before the Planning Board right now. The existing building on the site does not meet the rear yard setback although that is a paper street to the back there, so I don’t know whether that would be considered a front or rear. Regardless, the required setback is the same, 60 feet. We have approximately 52. I don’t have the application with me but it’s in the application. All the proposed modifications to this building would be within the setbacks that are proposed in the front of the building as shown on sheet 2 of the drawing set. The site is also proposed to contain an additional commercial building - an office building that would meet all the Zoning too. So the only thing that a setback variance would be required for be the setback for the existing building.

Mr. McKelvey: You have 49 feet on the existing building and you’re asking for an 11 yard (s/b feet) …

Mr. Brown: Correct.

Mr. McKelvey: … on the new building.

Mr. Brown: On the existing building.

Mr. McKelvey: All right. Yes.

Mr. Donnelly: Again, it’s a shift of protection from 185-19, the variance because they are enlarging the building. 

Mr. Brown: My client owns a company that manufactures granite counter tops and whatnot. This building is going to be for his own use. And again, this is a referral from the Planning Board do to our application there.

Mr. McKelvey: I will say this property has been cleaned up quite a bit from what it was there for years.

Mr. Brown: Yes, he cleaned it up as soon as he purchased it. 

Chairperson Cardone: It still needs more though.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes. 

Mr. Brown: I’m sorry?

Chairperson Cardone: I said, it still needs a little more though, at least when I was there.

Mr. Brown: They won’t let him do any more until this application is approved or the site plan.

Mr. McKelvey: I am just saying it was an eyesore before.

Chairperson Cardone: I have the report from the Orange County Department of Planning and I’d just like to read that into the record. The conditions and restrictions related to or incidental to the proposed use of the property may be imposed with the approval of an area variance to minimize any adverse impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and community. In this case the proposed action of addition to an existing manufacturing structure, a newer office building, along with a new parking lot may not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhood, State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns.

Mr. Brown: Well again, as with the previous application this is request (inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

 (Time Noted – 8:03 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 10:01PM)

JOHN MC MORROW


162 ROUTE 17K, NBGH







(94-1-61) IB ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of John Mc Morrow, 162 Route 17K seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback for an existing building to enlarge the existing building and construct a new building. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I see no problem, that’s a paper road in the back and there’s other businesses back there. And, I am sure it’s really going to enhance that piece of property.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY










CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ. 

(Time Noted – 10:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006


(Time Noted – 8:03 PM)

JAMES McLAUGHLIN


1 RATHMORE ROAD, MARLBORO







(8-1-106) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to keep a pool in the front yard.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is John McLaughlin, 1 Rathmore Road, Marlboro. 

Mr. McLaughlin: Good evening. I am here tonight request a variance to put a pool in my front yard. I guess the way the Law is stated you can’t have a pool between the dwelling and a road. It’s considered your front yard; I have three roads around me.

Chairperson Cardone: And so, you have three front yards.

Mr. McLaughlin: I have three front yards, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: As you look at it, it looks like a side or rear yard rather than a front yard.

Mr. McLaughlin: Where the pool will be?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McLaughlin: Yes, it’s off to the side yard more towards the back yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: It’s really going to be hard to see from the road too.

Mr. McLaughlin: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Because you are up on a hill.

Mr. McLaughlin: Hm, hm.

Chairperson Cardone: And I do have the report from the Orange County Department of Planning on this particular application. Conditions and restrictions related to or incidental to the proposed use of the property may be imposed with the approval of an area variance to minimize any adverse impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and community. In this case the proposed action of installing an above ground pool, due to the landscaping and amount of trees located on the site will not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhood, State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. Do we have any questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? If not … Oh, please step up to the microphone, state your name and address.

Neighbor #1: Neighbor #1, I’m            Road, Jim is my next door neighbor. My concern was the front yard, what they were considering the front yard. Rathmore Road, I would be kind of against and I know he is not going to put it in his front yard that’s why I just wanted to make sure it’s was either on the side of his house or in back of his house.

Chairperson Cardone: And, we have that information that it already states.

Neighbor #1: O.K. That’s fine. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.  

(Time Noted –  8:06 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision:  10:02 PM)

JAMES McLAUGHLIN


1 RATHMORE ROAD, MARLBORO







(8-1-106) A/R ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of John McLaughlin at 1 Rathmore Road, Marlboro seeking an area variance to keep a pool in a front yard. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. This is a case where he has more than one front yard.

Mr. McKelvey: Three of them.

Chairperson Cardone: Three of them, in fact. And, the pool would really not be visible from the street that it’s facing.

Mr. McKelvey: No, because he is up on a pretty steep hill there.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have any more discussion on this application? Do I have a motion for approval?

Mr. Donnelly: Because of the three backyards, could I just ask, does it need a variance for each of those yards?

Mr. Hughes: Only where the pool location is.

Mr. McKelvey: Only one.

Chairperson Cardone: It’s just the one, on the one street.

Mr. Donnelly: It has three front yards but it’s only on the one street that he needs the variance?

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Donnelly: What is the required setback, anyway?

Chairperson Cardone: It wasn’t the setback; it was just that it was in the front yard.

Mr. Donnelly: I see, I got it. It isn’t a dimensional one, right.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we approve this variance.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY










CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 10:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006


(Time Noted – 8:06 PM)

CHRISTOPHER TIGHE


64 WESTWOOD DRIVE, NBGH







(91-1-14)  R-1 ZONE  

Applicant is seeking an interpretation/area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards to enclose rear room on home for a utility garage. Section 185-19-C-1.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Christopher Tighe, 64 Westwood Drive. 

Mr. Tighe: Hi, Chris Tighe, 64 Westwood Drive, Newburgh. I’m applying for an interpretation and variance to enclose an area under the house that fills out the rear corner of the house and I think you might have pictures already.


Mr. McKelvey: We’ve all been to the site.

Mr. Tighe: All right, you know. The whole question of the application raised an interesting question and discussion about what actually constitutes increasing levels of non-conformity. In my case, I am not really building up or down; I am filling in and making the structure actually more complete. It’s building an existing wall, I’m sorry, building a new wall in an existing space. I don’t believe that this will have any adverse impact. I think it will be a positive impact because it does in fact make the architecture of the building look more complete, more of a actual building. The fact that I do request the interpretation is due to the fact that the Town recently changed the Zoning. So, it’s not a situation that, I think, is self-inflicted. It won’t be visible of course to anyone but the existing neighbors one house to our left. I don’t believe it’s a substantial area that we’re talking about to the whole plot and it probably if anything as I said before will have a more positive impact overall making the house more energy efficient of course because we won’t have cold air underneath because we’re enclosing and that’s pretty much about it.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions from the Board? 

Mr. McKelvey: You’re not going to use the garage?

Mr. Tighe: Pardon me?

Mr. McKelvey: You’re not using the garage? You are not using it now right, the garage?

Mr. Tighe: It’s pretty much tools and whatever.

Mr. Donnelly: This is kind of a fascinating legal issue and I don’t know how you’ve approached it before but let me give you the typical scenarios where it comes. You have a provision that says you can’t increase the degree of the bulk table of non-compliance. Let’s take a simple example, you are supposed to be 30 feet from a sideline, you are 10 feet. The proposal is to extend the house, further, deeper into the lot right along the 10-foot setback. Is that increasing the degree of the non-compliance because the amount of building that will be running up and down that line is larger in terms of it’s area than before even though the 10 feet is the same. What if the applicant proposes to build the building upward another story at the same 10 feet? And then the third one in this usual trio is what if you infill an open porch or some other kind of space that doesn’t increase the degree of the U shaped house that has a hollow area in the middle that’s now proposed to be filled in. While the 10 feet isn’t changed, is the filling in of that open space like a porch or this U shaped house itself increases the degree of non-conformity? I think as a Board, you have the opportunity to make that determination. However, once you make it, it becomes your precedent and you need to follow it. I think there’s logic to say that in each of those cases given the five standards especially the character of the neighborhood that at least running a building that may be 10 feet from a property line for only 10 feet now to a distance of 50 or 60 is from that neighbors point of view and from the neighborhoods point of view an event that increases the degree of non-compliance as does building upward. The third example is a little bit harder to get a feel for, but I don’t know if you’ve crossed those issues before or made decisions in this regard.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we have and the Board has ruled in that way in the past.

Mr. Donnelly: For each of those, the longitudinal, the upward as well as the infill.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s correct.

Mr. Donnelly: O.K.

Mr. Tighe: And, I had raised a question with the Building Inspector just sort of philosophical question, in that, since the house, the corner of the house that sits over the open air is supported by a pole which is indeed in a foundation which will be integrated into the new structure, could it be said that that existing foundation is part of that line, that line that will be filled in between? So, could it be said that it’s a lot like adding a window to an existing wall that you might say well I don’t need a variance to put a window in even though I do need a permit because I am not increasing the level of non-conformity? It’s kind of an interesting legal discussion.

Mr. Donnelly: I would agree there’s a difference between putting a window in and infilling a porch. But, I think the concept is that whenever you change the mass or volume of what is there, under this Board’s precedent that would require a variance. I don’t have a set of plans to know exactly what it is you’re proposing here. I can’t analyze it.

Mr. Tighe: Would you like to see anything?

Mr. Donnelly: They must be in the Board Member’s files. Oh, just the photos. O.K. I do have the photos, I thought, O.K. So, this area that has these metal poles will now be filled in.

Chairperson Cardone: It will be enclosed.

Mr. Donnelly: So, that’s more than just doing a window. That’s …

Mr. Tighe: Of course.

Mr. Donnelly: … filling in an area.

Mr. Tighe: Of course, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: I would think that at the risk of precedential activity we should steer it just as a variance and in response to your question about the interpretation we’ll steer away from that for now. To say that, what would you call that, vaulting?

Mr. Donnelly: If you decide you need to grant a variance, you’ve made an interpretation that this constitutes a ….

Chairperson Cardone: That he needs a variance.

Mr. Donnelly: … increasing the degree of non-compliance.

Mr. Hughes: Well, it is a furtherance of non-conformity.

Mr. Donnelly: If I understand what your Chair has said, that is a determination you have already made in the past and now 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, it is.

Mr. Donnelly: … you are adhering to your precedent, which is something that you need to do or find a good reason to distinguish from it.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for explaining all that. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

Mr. Tighe: May I ask what happens next. First we request interpretation and then the variance and it’s pretty much done all in one?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Tighe: O.K. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:14 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006               (Resumption for decision: 10:04 PM)

CHRISTOPHER TIGHE


64 WESTWOOD DRIVE, NBGH







(91-1-14)  R-1 ZONE  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Christopher Tighe, 64 Westwood Drive, Newburgh. He was seeking an interpretation and/or an area variance increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yards to enclose rear room on the home for a utility garage. And the interpretation was on Section 185-19-C-1. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. As I had stated before, the Board in the past has upheld the fact that it would be increasing the degree of non-conformity and going from there - looking at an area variance. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I see no problem; we have granted these in the past.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY

                        CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ. (Time Noted – 10:05 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006


(Time Noted – 8:14 PM)

GLEN & ANGELA SHAPIRO

16 O’DELL CIRCLE, NBGH







(51-5-5) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking variances for lot area, lot width, lot depth, front yard, rear yard, side yards setbacks, lot surface coverage, maximum building coverage, increasing the degree of non-conformity with a taller building and docks must be 10 feet from adjoining property lines to build a new 3-story, 1-family residence with wrap around deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Glen Shapiro, 16 O’Dell Circle, Glen and Angela Shapiro. 

Mr. Minuta: Good evening ladies and gentlemen of the Board, my name is Joseph Minuta, I am the architect for the project, representing Minuta Architecture and my clients Glen and Mrs. Shapiro. We are here this evening to present this case based on the number of your dais, we were wondering if we might field some questions this evening since we are all here, the neighbors are here, and, perhaps stay a vote and come to a next meeting?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s fine with me.

Mr. Hughes: Go with the applicants’ prerogative.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: We can hold it open until next month, our meeting next month. However, if you would like to make the presentation and since so many neighbors have come so that we can hear what they have to say.

Mr. Minuta: Great, we’d like to do that. Thank you. O.K. The project consists of an existing single-family residence. It’s been in the Shapiro family for quite some time. Mr. Shapiro has lived there 10 years himself. What we are asking for are many variances. There’s actually a lot less than it would appear. The current zoning prohibits a lot of development of any kind on a lot of this size. Currently the lot size is non-conforming, the width, etc. So, we have a pre-existing condition. For the most part, we are not increasing any degrees of conformity or impermeable area with exception of the height and we are cantilevering a deck over the Lake. There has been question, we have been in response to the DEC with regard to ownership of the Lake and that would need to be permitted by the owner of the Lake. To date, there is no owner of Orange Lake. Nor the State, the County or the Town, there is no owner of record. Having stated that, I‘ve also spoken with Mr. Jay Coppola who is part of the Committee, a Committee for the Orange Lake Association and he has taken no exceptions to this proposal, to date. I would like to go through the plans, if I could with you for a moment. Within the package that we had provided, we provided not only photographs of the existing, but we also provided a small set of plans that we have put together to represent what the building would look like when it’s complete. (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: We have copies to show the audience.

Mr. Hughes: We have copies of everything.

Mr. Minuta: The property is currently situated as such, we have the building here, this is the property line, this is currently a deck area with an arbor, another deck area here and stairs and landings coming to the roadway. What we are looking to do is to simply renovate that aspect of it, it’s a rather old home, and to do that we are proposing to provide a new set of stairs and landing at this location with an arbor above that. And, for those of you who are unfamiliar with an arbor, essentially it’s a wood open trellis structure that you can grow pachysandra and things of that nature. So, it’s a beautification of the process. We have a new retaining wall on the lower section, which will be replacing an existing retaining wall. We come down to a new covered entrance to the house. The deck will be replaced in the same place that it was before with the arbor. We have provided and changed the entrance to the house. Actually, no, the entrances remain the same and I’ll get to that in just a moment. The only additional item that we’re doing here and all of this is impermeable, is permeable coverage because it’s simply a pressure treated deck that sits above the ground level therefore water, etc can permeate through it as it normally would on grass or any other surface. With regards to the boat dock, the boat dock is certainly in this position, we are hoping to move it to this location with a footpath and then the cantilever onto the Lake is actually beyond the property line at this location as it currently exists. The only thing that we’re doing is squaring that off and bringing it out because at this point we have the deck area with the railing, etc. and we’re proposing on enclosing that with screen. That would allow a small section here in which to open up and enjoy the view of the Lake. That’s pretty much it for the site plan. With regard to the existing dwelling, this is the existing dwelling the layout of the floors; the elevations and I’ll go through that with you in a moment. And, please don’t let this scale deceive you, this is 3/16ths, the plans that we are presenting are slightly larger to present more detail. O.K. We have an existing, we have an existing so-called foundation, there’s really nothing there, it would not satisfy today’s Building Code or even Building Codes of even thirty years ago. We are planning on demolishing the entire structure, at this point, due to the deflection in the structure, the existing spans on the beams, etc. and, the fact that there’s no formal foundation underneath it. Currently, as it exists, we have a living room, a dining room, a bath and a kitchen, this being the main entrance. On the second floor, we have a bedroom and a porch area outside. That’s the extent of the house. Mr. Shapiro having lived there for the past 10 years recently married looking to have a family, etc., it simply will not accommodate a family, there’s only one bedroom. So, part of the reason for the addition is to increase the number of bedrooms in the house. The new plan proposes a formal foundation with crawl spaces underneath and they’re not crawl spaces for storage, it’s essentially to provide an airspace below so that you have better thermal properties and that you also have the ability to put plumbing under there to get to other areas of the house rather than slab on grade which would require a lot more work in the future and this makes it a little more difficult. The new floor plan would consist of the kitchen in the same location, (?mechanical) and dining room, a stair that would meet Code Compliance and to today’s standards to reach the second floor as well as a living room and a bathroom and this is the area outside which is currently a patio which we will be screening in at that location and again this is all being reconstructed so it’s all going to be new. Off to the side, we venture down here, this would be the main entrance, have a covered entrance at this point with the arbor coming through. We also have a secondary means of egress to the building for both safety and for convenience and that is to this location. It currently exists there now; we’d be changing that slightly. So, the constraints of the property are essentially the same. The second floor would consist of a sitting area, which would be out in front and we would have a bathroom and then two bedrooms. The third floor would be the master bedroom suite, which would consist of the master bath, dressing area and a master bedroom with an arched window to view out to the Lake. Then, we have our standard roof plan, which is simply a gabled roof that would be pitching from side to side. In elevation, this part of the building would look like this. O.K.? In comparison to the previous elevation and again the only difference is the scale of the drawings. There is an increased height of 6 feet - plus or minus. And, we have an existing street elevation, which looks like this. So, we take this house and we make that of it. O.K.? So, we’re absolutely beautifying the neighborhood. We’re increasing the value of the property, of the owners and the owners neighboring property. Providing more conducive residence for the owners and this would be the Lakeview side, here is the previous Lakeview side of this. O.K.? So, I know there’s quite a few people here and if there are no further questions of the Board, I would field any questions anyone may have.    

Chairperson Cardone: I have a question about the deck that is on the side of the house, when was that built? 

Mr. Minuta: That I cannot answer.

Mr. Shapiro: There was a structure there when we bought the house; we just pretty much improved it since then.

Chairperson Cardone: You don’t know when it was built?

Mr. Shapiro: It was there; I mean we bought the house 10 years ago; it was there, prior to that.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: Part of this deck, you’re saying here, is going to be out over the Lake?

Mr. Minuta: Yes. It cantilevers over the Lake. It does not protrude the Lake nor does it disturb the Lake bottom in any way at that location. The foundation and cantilevered steel joists, which would be fairly negligible in appearance, would actually be on the owner’s property they would simply project over. So, to extend that, there is no disturbance of the Lakebed itself.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a dimension of that extension? 

Mr. Minuta: Yes. This extension is approximately 2 ½ to 3 feet. The new extension is approximately 4 to 5 feet.

Mr. Hughes: How did you calculate your proposed coverages for the lot?

Mr. Minuta: In the lot coverage, we currently have submitted is 10%, we have 21% and that 21% is based on the building and impermeable coverage not the permeable coverage.

Chairperson Cardone: And, were you including the decks? You were including the decks in that coverage?

Mr. Minuta: No, because the decks include quite a large portion of the property and again they are existing and impermeable, permeable.

Mr. Hughes: I am looking at this thing by eye and two thirds of its got a building or a deck over the top of it.

Mr. Minuta: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: How many cars can you legitimately park on this area out front here that’s described? You only have 46 feet, that’s two cars this way, one behind each other.

Mr. Minuta: Correct and that’s existing.

Mr. Hughes: You’re building a three-bedroom house, where are you going to park the third car?

Mr. Minuta: At this point, you have two cars; most people are allowed two cars on the property. They’re building a three-bedroom house. They don’t currently have any children. So, I would venture to say we’re looking at two cars. Clearly there’s no access for a garage or a grade change of that.

Mr. Hughes: So, you’re talking about knocking the whole thing down and creating a brand new building. What’s the basement here like now? Is there a basement?

Mr. Minuta: There is no basement.

Mr. Hughes: And, you are proposing to put in a basement, I see there’s crawl spaces that are written in on your plan. 

Mr. Minuta: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: How deep are they?

Mr. Minuta: A couple of feet. It’s simply to raise it above the water level and to raise the base level above the flood plain.

Mr. Hughes: First of all, I have lots of questions for you.

Mr. Minuta: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: You are over here on everything, I don’t know if we can even rule on that thing hanging out over the Lake to begin with. You have a problem with your boat dock that is supposed to be certain footage away from the next neighbors.

Chairperson Cardone: 10 feet.

Mr. Hughes: And, it goes on and on from there. I count somewheres around eleven (11) deficiencies, that are serious deficiencies and we’re not talking about inches here. We’re talking about feet and yards.

Mr. Minuta: If I may, we had an existing non-conformity.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, but once you knock it down, you don’t.

Mr. Minuta: Yes, actually the precedent is that we are building within the same footprint.

Mr. Hughes: For the house, maybe.

Chairperson Cardone: For the footprint of the house.

Mr. Minuta: Footprint of the house and …

Mr. Hughes: What are you going to do about all those decks and stuff?

Mr. Minuta: We are reconstructing them in the same location.

Mr. Donnelly: Are there any changes in the degree of non-compliance from what is now to what you propose? When I look at your table, the only ones that are not filled out are in the maximum permitted; you have lot coverage required as 10% …

Mr. Minuta: Yes.

Mr. Donnelly: Is the provided column what exists now? 21.55?

Mr. Minuta: Correct.

Mr. Donnelly: What will be the lot coverage after, because you have zero?

Mr. Minuta: It will be the same, that is ….

Mr. Donnelly: So, it should be 21.55?

Chairperson Cardone: It says, requesting 24.75 on my table.

Mr. Minuta: On your table?

Chairperson Cardone: For lot building coverage, yes.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: 24.75 and lot surface is 51.5%.

Mr. Minuta: That’s not our table. Our table consists of this and the recalculation between the Building Department …

Chairperson Cardone: This came from the Building Department.

Mr. Minuta: Yes, maam.

Chairperson Cardone: And these are their calculations.

Mr. Minuta: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And, I would have to go by their calculations here.

Mr. Minuta: But, we can err on the side of conservancy. Either way it’s an existing non-conformance and an existing lot coverage. We’re not increasing that conformance.

Mr. Donnelly: Well, if you’re increasing the lot coverage, only 10% is allowed, if you’re going from 21 to 24 in this case, which I think is what this says, right?

Mr. Minuta: Does that state that?

Chairperson Cardone: It does.

Mr. Donnelly: Then that would be an increase. That’s what I am trying to get a handle on. Which is and which isn’t?

Chairperson Cardone: This didn’t, this is, you’re saying 21 and this is 24.75, I don’t have the figure here for the lot (surface) coverage 20% is allowed and you have 51.5 according to the Building Department.

Mr. Minuta: Correct. To err on the side of conservancy, we can use those numbers. I would need to discuss with the Building Department directly, in detail, as to how they derived these numbers so that we can both be on the same page for that. In our presentation, there are really two degr …, assuming that all of these other items are existing non-conformances, we cannot meet the new Zoning Code regulations. It’s an existing residence that’s been there for … how many years, approximately?

Mr. Shapiro: What are you saying?

Mr. Minuta: When was it built roughly?

Mr. Shapiro: The original house, in the 1920’s

Mr. Minuta: It was built in the 1920’s. So …

Neighbor #1: It was a summer cottage.

Mr. Minuta: It was a summer cottage. And, your name sir?

Neighbor #1: Neighbor #1.

Mr. Minuta: Neighbor #1.

Neighbor #1: I live directly across the street.

Chairperson Cardone: In a moment, I will be asking for comments from the public. I also have a number of letters here from neighbors. But first, I wanted to see if the Board had anything else or if they would like me to start with the letters at this point?

Mr. Hughes: Let’s go on to the other stuff, I have some other stuff too, but I don’t think that’s appropriate.

Mr. Donnelly: I’d just comment on the one issue, 185-19 B, which is the non-conforming building and uses section, under B which is non-conforming buildings. It says that, and you’ve got to remember this is trying to cover two things at once, non-conforming uses and non-complying buildings, so you have to read both pieces of it. But it says, restoration after damage and let’s call this raise and rebuild the substantial equivalent to damage. It says that non-conforming building shall not be restored for other than a conforming use and this is a conforming use both before and after, the damage of more 50% from any cause unless a prior non-conforming use is re-instated within one year. Meaning that even if its damaged by more than 50% and it had a non-conforming use, you can restore it as long as you do it within a year. But, then it says, unless a conforming use … let’s see … if the restoration is not completed within the one year period then any prior non-conforming use of the building shall be deemed to have been discontinued. So, in other words, the only punishment on a destruction of a non-complying building that isn’t rebuilt within one year is a loss of the protection for a non-conforming use. So, I guess the issue is, while this refers to damage, if you consider a raise and rebuild to be the substantial equivalent of damage, it could be rebuilt and even a non-conforming use could be continued in a year. You don’t have to decide that right now, but that’s the issue, that’s the only provision that deals with this issue.

Chairperson Cardone: But, I think there’s also an issue of the original footprint of the building or what has been added to it at this case.

Mr. Donnelly: Whether it’s not truly protected it had be legal for it to be created.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. And was it, I don’t have the answer to right now is, was it legally created? That’s why I asked the question of when the decks were built.

Mr. Shapiro: There was an existing structure there that we fixed, you know, just corrected.

Mr. Minuta: If I may, the property has been purchased and been sold and within the parameters of a purchase and sale is the search for a Certificate of Occupancy and normally it cannot be sold unless the Certificate of Occupancy exists. 

Mr. Hughes: Is there more to the story?

Mr. Minuta: That’s pretty cut and dry.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a C.O.?

Mr. Minuta: The property … when was the last change of hands?

Mr. Shapiro: We purchased … the change of hands, in a, not even a year yet, it’s in May.

Mr. Minuta: Correct. So …

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a C.O.?

Mr. Shapiro: We can get a hold of that C.O.

Mr. Donnelly: Why don’t you submit it to the Board? Because it would generally refer to what use what was allowed and whether any Building Permits had been issued for additions and when they were closed out. That’s the kind of information that the Board, I think, would like to see.

Chairperson Cardone: We need to have that.

Mr. Minuta: I would be pleased to provide that and research that for you, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I have number of letters here; some of them are quite lengthy. Normally, I read the letters into the record. If any of the people who wrote the letters are here, if they would like to read their own letter and I’ll just read the ones of the people who are not here. I have a letter from Neighbor #2, Neighbor #3 and I have 2 letters from Neighbor #4 who in the second letter said that his son would be here …

Neighbor #4: I’m here.

Chairperson Cardone: And, Neighbor #5 & #6. So, I’ll start with that letter. To whom it may concern: It has come to our attention, that one of our neighbors plans to do some very major home renovations. In fact, it appears that it is not a renovation at all, but a whole new building. From what we understand, the proposed house will be severely different from the one that is presently there now. The measurements seem so extreme for the location – height and clearance between houses. We have lived in our home at Orange Lake for 26 years. Part of the beauty, and amenities that drew us to live in this area, was that you can walk around O’Dell Circle and have beautiful and unobstructed view of the Lake. We ask that you give the proposal a careful and well-examined review before rendering a decision. 

And, Neighbor #2 is not here? O.K. I recently purchased a house at  ____ O’Dell Circle. I was notified that Glen and Angela Shapiro are applying for a variety of variances to replace the house that they are presently residing in. My understanding is that Zoning variances are granted when a hardship exists. I don’t believe wanting a larger home qualifies to be a hardship. I am unable to attend this evening’s meeting but request that this letter becomes part of the record. 

This letter is from Neighbor #4 at _____ O’Dell Circle, as a property owner at ____ O’Dell Circle, I am writing to express my objections and concerns regarding the above referenced application for variance scheduled to be discussed at the December 28th zoning board meeting. My first objection relates to the timing of the discussion of this application, as it is common knowledge to the applicant that those most directly affected by his request are out of town this time of year and therefore cannot be present to express their views and opinions. Long distance travel during the holidays requires considerable advance ticket purchase and is not feasible on such short notice. I respectfully request that discussion of this particular application be postponed to a future meeting allowing neighboring homeowners to make travel plans to attend. In the event that postponement is not possible, I wish to express serious concerns regarding the proposed variance as it relates to any infringement of the new structure on existing setbacks between our two properties. As I am sure you are aware, many of the houses on Orange Lake are situated on very small lots and because of this even small increases in the dimensions of a new building can pose a direct and unacceptable encroachment on existing property lines. I strongly object to any part of the planned structure that reduces the established distance between our existing foundations, including but not limited to, decks, cantilevered walls, windows, etc. To allow any reduction in this separation would be an invasion of our privacy and violate our right to peaceful enjoyment of our property. While I respect the right of any property owner to seek to maximize the potential of their property for their own enjoyment, I urge that this not be achieved by denying the very same right to adjacent property owners. And, that letter was dated December 15th. 

And, I have an additional letter from Neighbor #4; dated December the 23rd. Rules including zoning laws are adopted to protect the rights of homeowners/taxpayers/citizens of communities. By virtue of asking for variances to these rules, one individual should not have the power to amend these rules at the expense of others affected by variances from established guidelines. In the case of the Shapiro application referenced above, the request for variances by one individual is directly tied to the creation of hardships to all surrounding property owners. As stated in my previous letter, I am presently traveling and have not seen the plans personally. Since the plans can only be viewed at the Town Hall and not copied, it is impossible for me to actually see them. I have, however, been advised by others who have researched this for me, what has been proposed. Firstly, the now existing deck on the lakeside of the house was built without the required permits or variances and with total disregard for the Planning and Zoning Board rules and regulations. To now use this illegal structure as part of the original footprint would only serve to provide addition variances on a structure that is already in violation of local Laws and Zoning requirements. Additionally, the part of the structure, which is enclosed, that faces the lake, was a screened-in porch, which was also not part of the original structure that was on the original footprint. With the excessive number of variances being applied for, it seems obvious that the wishes of one individual, who has already demonstrated a lack of respect for the Zoning Laws of the community, are attempting to be imposed on all of the other members of the immediate area. It would seem obvious that the privacy, views, lives and living conditions of neighboring residents would be forever impacted and diminished if these variances are granted. I am actually shocked that someone in the neighborhood would even apply for things of this nature, trying to enhance their living conditions at the expense of all those around them. The only thing that would be more shocking to me would be that if you, on the Zoning Board of Appeals, appointed and sworn to protect property owners from these types of egregious attempts to put the desires of one individual above the rights of many law abiding and tax paying citizens, would allow it to happen. One critically important fact must be recognized. Each and every exception that is made for the benefit of Mr. Shapiro is a direct violation of the rights of the adjacent homeowners who object to these exceptions. To say that this is not true would be to say that there is no need to have any Zoning restrictions, in theory, for the protection of landowner/taxpayers, because all one has to do is ask that they be able to encroach on the rights of others and these requests will be granted. I am and always will be a live and let live type of person. However, as one who has served this country to protect the freedom of its citizens, I will not stand by and allow my rights to be compromised. Should variances to which I am opposed be granted, I will pursue any and all legal remedies available to me to protect and defend my rights as one of these citizens. I am told that as a matter of policy letters are not read at a public hearing, however, I hereby certify that I have no objection to my letters being read should the Board elect to do so. Although it is impossible for me to be there personally, if these letters are not a sufficient expression of my objections, I hereby inform the Board that I have authorized my son, Neighbor #7, ___________ Road, Pine Bush, New York and/or Neighbor #8, __________ Road, Wallkill, New York, to speak on my behalf with regard to these proposed variances. 

And, the letter from Neighbor #3 is short, I’ll read that also, I would like to respond to the letter I received from your office dated the 7th day of December, 2006, regarding the Notice of Hearing for the premises located at 16 O’Dell Circle, owned by Glen and Angela Shapiro. I do not object to Mr. & Mrs. Shapiro’s remodeling of their home; however, if they intend on increasing the width or height of this residence then I would like you to be aware of the following. Currently I have a very limited view of the lake. If Mr. & Mrs. Shapiro increase the size of their home in the areas cited above, I will lose what little view I now have, completely. Furthermore, the loss of my view of the lake will result in a diminished resale value of my property, should I decide to sell sometime in the future. Therefore, in summation I would like it documented that I object to any increase of height or width of these premises. Also, I would like my son Neighbor #14 to represent me at this hearing since I am out of state and will be unable to attend. Those are the letters that the Board has received from the residents of the area. Do we have any members of the public who would like to respond to this application? Please stand, state your name and address.

Neighbor #9: My name is Neighbor #9, I’m on ______ O’Dell Circle, first and foremost I’d like to say that I am absolutely appalled by Neighbor #4’s letter. I want to throw the mercy at the Board as a neighbor as close as Neighbor #4 that he is not talking for myself or for quite a few other neighbors that I have spoken to that I would like to represent here at this meeting. I’d also like to notice that there’s been some amazing renovations and homes built on the lake in the last year and a half and I think if you go back in some of those letters other than Neighbor #3 you get the same people complaining about the same things. They are definitely not the majority on Orange Lake. The home, I also find it very hard to believe to write a letter of such strength without asking to view the plans prior to doing so and I’d also like to mention that in the last year and a half, I may have seen Neighbor #4 home for two weeks. He’s purchased a place in Utah; so to say they are planning a meeting when he wouldn’t be there, when is he there? And, not to throw stones, but I’m absolutely frustrated from the sounds of that letter. Now, in the last several years there’s been nothing but beautification of the lake, the homes have added values to mine. I walk around O’Dell Circle with my two daughters on a daily basis and there’s no obstructions of the Lake on any portion of that Circle. I think if you gave some of the opportunity to and sorry to say this but if you had a broken down Volkswagen and you had the chance to fix it with a beautiful Porsche, I think most people would do that or at least beautify the actual car that’s there. This is the first that I had a chance to really see the plans. It would fit in the neighborhood. It would beautify the neighborhood and to deny a variance for something that’s as gorgeous as this is going to be as long as the height doesn’t obstruct Neighbor #3’s view to that point and the local neighbors who are behind them don’t have an issue with the deck that may be obstructing I think would be absurd. That’s my five minutes on my soapbox. I appreciate that and thank you very much.  

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Yes.

Neighbor #10: Good evening, hi, my name is Neighbor #10. I apologize for reading. I live at ______ O’Dell Circle. I am the neighbor to the immediate right of the Shapiros when you face their house. I recently purchased my house as of May of this year and I have invested almost a half a million dollars in the purchase and care of my house, of my 1200 sq ft house, which I purchased solely for the amazing water views it offered. I am here tonight to express my extreme concern with the plans proposed by the Shapiros, which as I will demonstrate not only will extensively block my Lake views from my living areas including my living room, sun room and bedroom, as well as my exterior views from my deck. But, may also decrease my properties value once these views are lost as well as infringe on my rights as a fellow Lakefront property owner. My concerns and objections are focused upon, but not limited to the variances concerning the rear yard setback, the violation of specific Orange Lake Laws and the side yard setbacks. With regard to the rear yard setbacks and the Orange Lake Laws the proposed three-season sunroom, which by design will extend completely to the rear lot line coinciding with the water line clearly violates several Zoning Laws as well as the Orange Lake Laws. The Shapiros in an effort to solely enhance their own views plan to block views from four (4) rooms in my home as well as various views from my side deck as evidenced in these pictures, which I could submit or not that’s up to you. Some of the pictures have been modified to demonstrate what the proposed sunroom would be as the architectural drawing, as I have seen the drawings. But, I did not attempt to draw decks or docks because I didn’t feel like I had the measurements to do that.

Chairperson Cardone: Also, could you point out, if you could come up, point out where this is the property, where would you be? You’d be right here?

Neighbor #10: This is the road; this is the Lake right here. I’m here. The deck to be added extending over the water actually out into the Lake will obviously require a railing height of a minimum of 42 inches for safety. Therefore, this accessory structure is designed to further limit additional views simply by the virtue of its placement beyond the rear of the lot property line. The deck and any docks protruding therefore from that will negatively impact safe and normal navigation and reasonable access to my own dock. Additionally, all the above mentioned are in direct violation of Article 6 of the local Zoning Laws governing Orange Lake as stated in Article 185-48.3 Subsection J, Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs D & E. These were added in 2002 and amended in 2004 to specifically protect the right of Lake Owners. In that amendment it addresses docks, boathouses and accessory structures. Under Subparagraphs D & E of Subsection J, accessory structures within 10 feet to the rear of the Lakefront property line shall not obstruct any existing view from any existing dwelling or Lakefront yard area on any adjoining property. Additionally, Subsection I of Paragraph 3 of Article 185-48.3 also mentions that no dock shall be constructed so as to interfere with normal navigation or reasonable access to docks and shorelines of adjacent parcels. With regard to the side yard setbacks, the proposed wraparound deck to be built within 18 to 24 inches respectively on the side property lines and in violation of side yard setbacks regulation within the local Zoning Laws will further encroach upon the limited privacy offered by the small lot sizes available on the Lake. And, I know you addressed that there will be proper irrigation but it does bring up concern about where runoff will go and such. I have to admit initially, when the Shapiros said that they were building a home, I was very excited for them because I strongly believe people are entitled to change. However, after viewing their proposed request for eleven (11) variances, its eleven (11) allowances to defy the Laws written to protect us, I have to object. The Shapiros are asking the Board to suspend Laws that the Orange Lake Civic Association and the Town of Newburgh have worked so diligently to get passed for the protection of all Lakefront Property Owners and their existing views. The Shapiros proposed structure would not only almost obliterate my Lake views from my living room, bedroom, sunroom and side decks, but also restrict my privacy and potentially diminish my property’s value. So, I am asking or pleading rather for you the Members of the Zoning Board of Appeals for some protection of my rights as well as the rights of other concerned neighbors, our views and our properties as fellow tax payers and residents. Clearly if left to discretion of the Shapiros there would be no consideration for the infringements of the rights of the neighbors of the Lake, so, I’d like to sincerely thank you in advance for your time, patience and help in seeking resolution to this challenging matter. I feel confident you will do what’s is in the best interest of the citizens of the Lake and the quality of life as we know it and I eagerly await your rulings and understand that there are additional legal options in the Court of Appeals I may pursue to protect my rights as necessary. Thank you again for your time and attention and allowing me to speak tonight. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anyone else that would like to speak to us? Yes.

Neighbor #11: My name is Neighbor #11; I live at _______ Street. I’ve got a letter here from my mother who, I’ll just read it. It says: Dear Members of the Zoning Board, regretfully I am unable to attend tonight’s meeting as I still recovering from a hip replacement. However, I would like to make my feelings known regarding the variances requested by the Shapiros for the reconstruction of their residence on O’Dell Circle on Orange Lake. I am opposed to allow the variance to encroach further out towards and into the Lake. This could set a precedent that I am certain no one who lives on the Lake would like to see repeated. By allowing residents on the Lake to build out further you would unduly impact the surrounding residents view of the Lake. I have lived on the Lake for 50 years and see ordinances have been effect for a reason. Thank you for your thoughtful consideration in this matter. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thanks. Do we have anyone else? Neighbor #1 could you point out on the map where the home would be?

Neighbor #1: My home?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. 

Neighbor #1: It’s directly across the street.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Neighbor #1: Directly.

Chairperson Cardone: This one right here? This is it?

Neighbor #1: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thanks.

Neighbor #1: Just to say one simple thing if they were replacing the house that’s there I would have no objection to it but to build a ‘super-structure’ which they’re designing is definitely going to impede my view. I agreed with Neighbor #9 when they did theirs, my friend Neighbor #9 is here; spoke earlier and never looked at the plans. Now Neighbor #9 has a beautiful house and it’s pretty but all I see is siding and a roof now - when I look at Neighbor #9’s house. I don’t see the Lake anymore and I know that’s what’s going to happen here. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Neighbor #1: When you take a two-story house and make it three-stories and I owned that house at one time, 30 years ago, it belonged to our family. So, I know that it was originally a two bedroom house and it had a front porch on it, which was a Florida room or a screened in porch which was converted into living space, which it now has sliding glass doors on it. But, originally that was just a porch that stood on (inaudible) columns and there is no foundation, there’s a crawl space under that house.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Neighbor #1: You’re welcome.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anyone else who would like to speak to this application? Yes.

Neighbor #7: Neighbor #7, representing my father Neighbor #4, long story short from that letter you read pretty much covered all of it but, it’s obstruction of view from the backyard, you would loose all view of the Cove down to the right as well as depending on how high the deck on the left side now sits off the ground, it could potentially give them view down into patio on the side of the house, into the kitchen window and such and reduce their privacy. Those are the two main issues as well as the claiming the original footprint would include that back deck and extending out in the back because the houses are zigzagged right now and it would essentially bring them forward. And now the back lawn instead of sitting parallel to open water and a dock is now an extended deck. So, obstruction of view is a big one as well and if this does go forward then there would be a proposed plan that they perhaps then try to move out to then counteract the view that was blocked. So, it may come back around full circle and Shapiro may be sitting on the other side arguing now that this view to the left would then be blocked by a structure my father may propose to build in the future. That’s it. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anyone else who would like to speak to this? Yes.

Mr. Neighbor #12: Neighbor #12, __________ Road, at the beginning of your talk, you said something about Mr. Coppola, would you repeat what you had said about that?

Mr. Minuta: Certainly, I spoke with Mr. Jay Coppola who it’s my understanding represents the Orange Lake Association and I spoke with Mr. Coppola strictly with regard to the cantilever of the deck area. We had written a letter to the DEC with regard to this, to see if there was any impact. Part of the letter that was sent back to us and we’re in process with them is with regard to ownership of the Lake and there are no owners of the Lake. So, we have checked with the State, we’ve checked with the County, we’ve checked with the Town, no one owns the Lake and Mr. Coppola did concur with that. With regard to the cantilever of the deck, we were proposing an additional two feet out there on top of what is already there, which is approximately 2 ½ feet and he did not object to that, it’s not penetrating the Lake, it’s simply hovering above the Lake so, we’re not loosing any views per say.

Neighbor #12: And, Mr. Coppola’s position in the Community is? In general, is Mr. Coppola just a friend of yours or a friend of the Community, is he on the Zoning Board, what? What is his purpose for making this statement to you directly? It sounds like it was a one on one.

Mr. Minuta: It was.

Neighbor #12: Do you have letters?

Mr. Minuta: No. But, I …

Neighbor #12: Do you have a letter from Mr. Coppola?

Mr. Minuta: No, I do not, he would be happy to provide one, I would be happy to do that.

Neighbor #12: Who is he speaking for, himself?

Mr. Minuta: As part of the individual of the Association. I believe he leads at the Association …        

Neighbor #12: Does he speak for the Association?

Mr. Minuta: As, I would, you know what?

Neighbor #12: Or did he speak to you on the street?

Mr. Minuta: I don’t know that that was a formal parlay.

Neighbor #12: O.K. I’d like to have you disregard any mention of Mr. Coppola and no matter what happens at this building that’s going up, it’s going to do nothing, whether nothing is done or anything’s done, it’s just going to increase my property. So that isn’t an issue. I think for the benefit of the Board and for the benefit of Mr. and Mrs. Shapiro I think it would behoove everyone involved to get together with an organization that is older than all of us here and that is the Orange Lake Civic Association, Homeowners Association of which myself, my mother and everyone else who is connected to me has been President of. I wasn’t going to get up and talk but it angers me to think that no one has gone before the Orange Lake Homeowners Association who has already made distinct contacts with the Zoning Board, the Planning Board and has got vast rules and regulations which have been approved by the Zoning and Planning Board and concur and spoke for years. Mr. Coppola happens to be on the Orange Lake Civic Association but I would say that you, if you’re the representative of the Shapiros should get together with Neighbor #13, have a meeting with the Orange Lake Homeowners Association. Neighbor #13 is away also and I think that if anybody wants to get anything done here at all, whether it be at this hearing or in the future or anything done on Orange Lake at all, they’d better come and see the Homeowners Association. Because, I am not going to say we are a benevolent despot or anything like that but and we don’t rule the Lake, but we’ve spent years and years and years making sure that everyone concurs with what is going to be done on this Lake, which is a private Lake and it’s a very delicate balance that we tread here. And, as far as cantilevering over the Lake it’s not going to happen. I was there when we reviewed that and I think you all know that already.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, yes.

Neighbor #12: So, that’s a dead issue, there is not going to be any cantilever. Fortunate or unfortunate if there could be, I’d be cantilevering out into the middle of the Lake and I’d have a Casino out there too. So, please I beg you and for the benefit of the Shapiros and for the benefit of the rest of the Lake whether it be on the North end, the West side or the East side or O’Dell Circle or Doctor’s Point or wherever you’d better get in touch with the Orange Lake Homeowners Association because you know what - they’re a really powerful group of people and they’re going to let anything happen without a big fight if they don’t like it and that sounds pretty cruel but do you concur? Probably. But nothing is going to happen without them and I am not a Board Member anymore …

Chairperson Cardone: We always appreciate your input.

Neighbor #12: Thank you. I’m done.

Mr. Shapiro: I just have something to say. I didn’t mean to upset anybody. We didn’t realize that this was going to be such a controversial subject. We obviously got a good turnout. We went to our architect. We wanted to put another floor on our house and we’re sitting on dirt so, you know, to put a foundation on there and do a third floor like we wanted to, it was just suggested to us that it would probably be economically feasible just to knock the house down and replace it. We’re only, you know, we’re staying within the height guidelines, we’re not going off the footprints of the house. We can rework the plans; we didn’t realize that it was going to cause such a stir. I mean, if we, would essential knock the house down and build the same house I am sure there would be problems with that as well, but you know we’re just trying to build a house. So, I mean, we didn’t know that we had to go in front of the Board, the Orange Lake Association, you know, we were just following the steps, we’re still in the very preliminary stages, we have our plans here, nothing is set in stone, I mean, nobody came and talked to us. A lot of these people knew that we were building a house and nobody asked to see the plans or no one asked …

Audience member: I did, several times.

Mr. Shapiro: I mean, I didn’t know.

Audience member: Several times.

Mr. Shapiro: We’re certainly flexible we’re not here to block anybody’s view ...  

Audience member: And, I did not get to look at the plans.

Mr. Shapiro: … or ruin anybody’s life or you know, pretty much, you know that seems to be what the case is, so, if we have to go in front of whatever, the Boards we have to or, you know, whatever. You know we are not trying to ruin anybody’s life here; we’re just trying to build a house.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you.

 Neighbor #14: Glen did show me his plans, when I saw him on the street, he ran right down to the house, he did bring his plans up, he did show him when I asked him, he was …

Chairperson Cardone: Your name and address?

Neighbor #14: My name is Neighbor #14 and I am Neighbor #3’s son, he was very forthcoming with any information and it doesn’t seem like they are trying to sneak anything around or try to (inaudible) with this.

Mr. Shapiro: We’re trying to do things the legal way here. If you wanted us to go in front of the Orange Lake Association Board, then so be it, I have no problem with that. I just didn’t know that they held a, had a say on what we could do. Not so much a say but I, you know, I just didn’t know that that was one of … we’re trying to do things legally …

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Shapiro:  … and if that of course is the legal course of action (inaudible) we’re going to do that.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, Neighbor #12.

Neighbor #12: Just a footnote to that. It isn’t a prerequisite, but there’s the people you can get all your answers from, who have done all the research. And did I know about this? No, not until Neighbor #11 and I met at the Post Office and met there, picked up the piece of paper, so this is a surprise to me. I have no objection to improvement. It’s absolutely incredible what has been done around the Lake by neighbors. It’s absolutely wonderful, it does nothing but bring my property value up, up, up. I want to continue to have the Shapiros as my neighbors. I want to have them have a dwelling that doesn’t cause (inaudible) and everything else. But, there are people that have done yard and miles of roadwork in this direction and you have an incredible resource. You don’t have to go before the Board of Homeowners Association, but I am sure you knew about them and you would get a lot of answer done. There’s no prerequisite. We are not a snobby little committee or something. We have been working together to preserve the Lake and the Community and have it done the right way. And, I agree with you, I think that probably the thing for you to do is tear down the house and put up a new one. But, you just can’t come in and say, well do all this work, it just doesn’t make sense until you get some more answers and I really didn’t know anything about this until I got my letter or I would have come to you and again …

Mr. McKelvey: I would like to, in this letter from, what was it …

Chairperson Cardone: Neighbor #4.

Mr. McKelvey: … you know, stating that stuff was built without Permits and variances, I would like to see a C.O. with …

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: … and see that all the Permits and variances were there.

Chairperson Cardone: We really would have to see that.

Mr. Hughes: It would prove your position, I am speaking to the applicant, if you could provide substantiating evidences of Building Permits and C.O.s and whatever there is, so that both the Building Department and our Board here can determine what was put there properly and what you’re trying to build on.

Mr. Shapiro: Well, since we became the owners of the house, you know, we haven’t done any alterations to the house. 

Mr. Hughes: Hm, hmm.

Ms. Drake: When did you become owners of the house?

Mr. Shapiro: In May.

Mr. Drake: But, I thought you said it, you had … ?

Mr. Shapiro: Well, my brother was the previous owner.

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: I mean, if stuff was built without Permits, we’d like to see it.

Mr. Shapiro: Right.

Neighbor #10: Could I ask a simple question? How come it the drawings say you had 23 feet to go towards the road, it appeared from these drawings, how come you just didn’t do that? And, then you wouldn’t have been blocking Lake views and wouldn’t have a cantilever; you wouldn’t need arguing so much? 

Mr. Minuta: Well, first of all I’d like to state that this is a public forum, it’s not meant to be an argument, it’s where people can air their views. This is the first blush that a lot of people get in a community to view a project. So, there’s a lot of concern and misconception. Nothing was done here and if we could work with every single one of you, to do a project, I would love come to your house and do a view shed diagram as to what would be blocked and what would not. And, if you’ll allow us that opportunity we’ll do that. The question that we really have here is that we see a lot of variances being requested. The real problem of the matter is the Zoning for this particular location no matter what they did they would be in violation. The house as it sits now, doesn’t meet the existing requirements. And again, we are simply planning on removing the existing house and rebuilding it in the exact same location. With regard to moving it forward, there is a logistical problem of moving down a slope to get to the house, so that is why we chose not to come back to the road and we also wanted to try to stay within the existing footprint of the house as we have done. With regard to moving out toward the Lake, we are not moving out the two to three stories to the Lake. We’re simply projecting out in as low a fashion as possible and I believe if we can model something for you, I’d love to do that. Where I don’t think you’ll have an impact on your property at your location. I’ve been to the house. I’ve seen your house. You are to the right, correct?  

Neighbor #10: Yes. You need to be in my house.

Mr. Minuta: If that’s an invitation? I would love to come.

Neighbor #10: Standing at your height, on my deck, maybe you might not see ... But, in my house or sitting on the deck and I’m only going by what you proposed. 

Mr. Minuta: May I take a look at those?

Mr. Hughes: They are right here.

Mr. Minuta: This view would be from where and viewing where? From whose arbor …?

Neighbor #10: From my arbor …

Mr. Minuta: And, this is viewing what?

Neighbor #10: This is my view as I look through my arbor. 

Mr. Minuta: Whose property is this, whose rail?

Neighbor #10: This is Glen’s.

Mr. Minuta: This is Glen’s property and the rail. O.K.

Neighbor #10: That what would be what would happen (inaudible)

Ms. Minuta: O.K. I would need to see where this is in relation. I’d be happy to do a photo view shed of this to what would be proposed and we can negotiate at that point what the design entails. Part of the plans are to accommodate the owner’s needs and that’s really what they are. It’s not designed by committee, he is the homeowner, just as you are the homeowner and you did with your house what you did what you wanted to with your house within legal parameters. We’re here today and the laundry list seems very long, but like I said, there are only I believe two variances ... if we were to come to this Board with this existing house to rebuild it in it’s exact location, exact height, we would still be coming for all the variances with the exception of two. And, one is the height, which from the Road, the ridge of the roof is actually a little over 9 feet from the Road. So, I don’t know who is over 9 foot tall and can see into the Lake at that point. But from that location no matter how high you go you are not going to see the Lake. You still have the view on either side and that’s not being impeded by the way. 

Neighbor #1: It’s my back porch, where I sit; I look directly over the roof of that house at the Lake.

Mr. Minuta: From your back porch?

Neighbor #1: That’s correct. 

Another neighbor: Directly across in our house it’s around…

Mr. Minuta: O.K.

Neighbor #1: If you want to look, you want to come to my back porch and take a look at the Lake you are welcome to come over.

Mr. Minuta: Is that an invitation?

Neighbor #1: Yes, it is.

Mr. Minuta: I’ll be there.

Neighbor #1: The porch is always open; you can go on there any time you want. 

Mr. Minuta: Thank you very much. So, again to put a lot of things to rest we have a plan here, it’s a working plan, we’ve provided the elevations, we’ve provided the plans so that you can all get a look at this and understand what we’re trying to accomplish and to get input from you so that we can redesign, in effect, what would be conducive to your Community and try to meet the Shapiros needs.

Chairperson Cardone: We had agreed that this would be held open until next month. I think that in the mean time between now and then, maybe some of these questions could be answered and this work can be done between now and then.

Mr. Minuta: My office will work on these questions to get you the answers that you’re looking. I don’t know if the Orange Lake Civic Association will be available between now and then, since the gentleman you mentioned is away.

Audience: He’ll be back this week.

Mr. Minuta: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: I’d like to see what, in writing, what Mr. Coppola said too.

Mr. Minuta: I would be happy to ask that of him. He requested that he would put it in writing, if needed. Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have …Is there any other …? Yes, go ahead. 

Audience Member: (Inaudible name) I was wondering if I could ask a question? I was speaking both to Neighbor #13 and Mr. Coppola.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you just hand her the mic, please, it comes right off.

Audience Member: I spoke both to Neighbor #13 and Mr. Coppola before they left and the one thing that they were both in concurrence with and said that we could use their names and that they were upset about was that, I guess, they had worked very hard on this Article 185-40 something point, paragraph such and such, all that stuff he gave me, I don’t know. But anyhow it said that from the present Lakefront property line that no obstruction was supposed to be, for 10 feet back, was supposed to be higher than 4 feet. So, therefore, this intended room that will be added on over the decks and right to the end of the deck will definitely be higher than 4 feet. It will be a complete obstruction and then beyond that was going to be a deck and that’s what I think was of main concern from the rear setbacks. O.K.? And, I believe that’s that was what we were questioning.

Mr. Minuta: No, I take no exceptions to that with regard to Mr. Coppola and his conversation with you. My conversation with him was strictly with regard to the cantilevered deck. Again, we are in a design process. So, we can certainly take that into consideration if that’s a regulation that’s been adopted, we can meet that to the extent that’s possible. Again, the intent here is to build within the existing footprint of the house. So, the addition of the screen porch although that may be nice, perhaps that’s not going to be feasible and again we are amenable to making those changes but they do have a family they are trying to build and some needs that they have. 

Mr. Donnelly: Can I suggest some things a few things that need to be clarified before the next meeting and maybe we can call on the Building Department to assist us either with a letter or perhaps attendance at the continued hearing. We need to know the construction history, when the house was built and whether or not Building Permits were issued and perhaps, somebody needs to compare that file with what’s out there. Because a threshold determination and it doesn’t disqualify the possibility of variances being granted but it would change the manner in which the Board sees this, is whether or not all of what is there now is protected under 185-19 the non-conforming building section or whether some of it may have crept in and I think that needs to be determined. It would be helpful Joe if on your table you clarified what the Building Department has put together dimensionally with what’s on your diagram so that we are talking the same apples to apples because if variances are granted here and they have different calculations, it’s going to be a problem later. It would also be helpful, I think, to the Board if you indicate on your table which of the variance requests are new and I mean new in the sense that they are increases in the degree of non-conformity. It seems to me that the increase in the height of the building in essence increases the degree of non-conformity of all of the non-complying setbacks front, if that’s the case, rear, so on and so forth. And, I think the only other, if I am reading the table correctly new non conformance may be with the coverage but I am not sure how those numbers come together. So, I think if you can meet with the Building Department and clarify that with a new submission. Thirdly, when it comes to the 185-48.3 Section, Neighbor #12 is correct, the Lake Owners Association came to the Town; they did work carefully in crafting that section to dovetail with their own rules and regulations in a fashion that announced it in the Ordinance. It is relatively new, it was put in to effect in 2005, you may need to look at it carefully. One part has been identified as needing a variance and that is 185-48.3-I, which has to do with the location, at least in so far as identified, of the dock in relation to adjoining property lines. They need to be 10 feet apart from the natural continuation or radial continuation of a property line. And, the 10-foot distance is not shown on your new dock on the plans so I don’t know where that dimensional calculation came from. The other provision that was mentioned, the J Section, that has a number of provisions regarding views and whatnot relates to boathouses, covered docks and accessory structures that are over 4 feet in height and I don’t see any dimensional information on the dock or if it’s there I’m missing it. And, that would require not a variance but a Special Permit, so, you may need to clarify and there’s nothing flagged under 185-48.3J by the Building Department for either a 

Special Permit or a variance. So, there’s nothing before the Zoning Board in that regard at this time. But, it may, if what we heard from the public, if all of that is accurate come back and haunt you later requiring that you return. So, you may need to clarify that with the Building Department before you return. And lastly, although the rules and regulations of the Lakefront Association do not bind this Board, they may well bind and affect you and your client. So, I think you should explore with the Board of the Association how you may want to change your plan or get their approval before your return. But, I think with those clarifications with the Building Department clarification as to what’s protected, and, it might be helpful if we could get somebody from Jerry Canfield’s Office to come ...

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donnelly: …with a file that could give some testimony as to what that history is, so that we could tie down some of these loose ends.

Mr. Minuta: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: If I might to, maybe we could get a clarification on that word damage and where it applies here on a raising?

Mr. Donnelly: Do you have any, I mean I’ll ask Carolyn whether or not in any fashion you have issued a determination on whether a raise and rebuild which to architects is often regarded as a method of construction rather than as a damaging event, is one that’s prohibited. I’ll see what I can find out. 

Mr. Hughes: I believe that it is, but I would like to have some information on that before we get back here. And, like Mike had indicated to you, some of the stuff is binding on your Association within the Lake itself. And, it doesn’t necessarily have to do with what we rule on. Make sure you’re in compliance with your own group before you get here or it may compound. 

Mr. Minuta: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from the Board or the public? This hearing will be continued at our next meeting in January, the fourth Thursday in January. 

Mr. Donnelly: The fourth Thursday in January is the 25th.

Chairperson Cardone: The 25th of January at 7:00. 

Mr. Minuta: If I may add one more thing, if there’s anyone here who would like me to take a look at your property with regard to the view, you may reach me at my office, my number is 565-0055. So, I’ve made that offer; please take me up on it if you have a concern.

Audience Member: Who are you?

Mr. Minuta: Joseph Minuta.

Audience Member: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.                         (Time Noted – 9:24 PM)
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(Time Noted – 9:24 PM)

JULIE MC GUIRK       


509 OAKWOOD ROAD, NBGH







(49-2-3) R-1

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback, increasing the degree of non-conformity to build a second story addition on home.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Julie Mc Guirk, 509 Oakwood Road. 

Mr. Nucifore: Hello, my name is Joel Nucifore, 5 Rockland Road, Poughkeepsie; I am here in regards to increasing degree of non-conformity. Basically, their family is growing, the house is a 2-story house, the garage is 1-story, we plan on bringing the 1-story over the garage up to add two bedrooms. The back of the house right now has a flat roof, so the increase of the house is approximately about 2 feet to try to put a floor on 12 inch pitch on the back part of the house. They had a lot of water damage from the flat roof area. But as far as beautifying we are going to put gables on the dormers and try to dress it up. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: You are Joel?

Mr. Nucifore: I’m Joel. I don’t know if there’s a …

Mr. Hughes: There is a proxy here; I wanted to make sure you’re the guy.

Mr. Nucifore: Yes, I am Joel.

Mr. Hughes: Joel Nucifore.

Mr. Nucifore: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: And, all mailings are in order.

Ms. Drake: Will you be increasing the number of bedrooms?

Mr. Nucifore: We will be adding two bedrooms, yes.

Ms. Drake: Are you on public sewer?

Mr. Nucifore: Yes, it’s a septic system, yes.

Ms. Drake: You are on existing septic not on public sewer?

Mr. Nucifore: No.

Chairperson Cardone: And the size …

Mr. McGuirk: We are actually adding the two bedrooms but we are also removing two bedrooms, we’re just taking out closets in two rooms. So we are not actually increasing the amount of bedrooms in the house. We’re just kind of rearranging where they will be.

Sorry, J.P. McGuirk.

Ms. Drake: So, the number of bedrooms will stay the same.

Mr. McGuirk: The number of bedrooms in the house will stay the same.

Mr. Hughes: Are you on water and sewer?

Chairperson Cardone: No, they’re not on sewer.  

Mr. Hughes: There’s no sewer.

Mr. McKelvey: Are you on Town water?

Mr. Nucifore: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And, do we have two front yards here besides that was overlooked?

Mr. McKelvey: He’s on a corner, right?

Mr. Hughes: Do we have two front yards on this besides? I don’t want to rule on this and find that there is something missing and have to have you come back here.

Mr. Nucifore: No.

Mr. Donnelly: Are both of them …? I see, the height would increase the degree of non-conformity.

Mr. Nucifore: Right. This is a diagram of what the house would look like. The main area, this is the existing roofline now. The garage will match the existing roofline; the big issue is the back of the house with the flat roof. We are going to raise that by about approximately two feet just to give it a 4 on 12” pitch in the back to try to get the water off the back roof.  

Mr. Hughes: Is that going to increase living space under that area as well?

Mr. Nucifore: No, it’s not really going to increase living space; it’s just mainly the water damage and everything off the back. The addition part is going to meet the existing roofline.

Mr. Hughes: Is this the back where the dormers are?

Mr. Nucifore: That’s the front; we are going to put a gable on them and dress them up a little. That’s the back; it’s pretty much a flat roof over there.

Mr. Hughes: On the top of this dormer?

Mr. Nucifore: Where that’s going to cover.

Mr. Donnelly: The Maple Avenue front yard setback complies cause it’s 53 feet. So, it would be the Oakwood Road front yard setback that would need the variance because of the increase of the degree of non-conformity.

Mr. McKelvey: Can I see that picture?

Mr. Nucifore: Yes, sorry. This is the existing roofline now. Right here is the garage, that’s where we are going up. The existing roofline is going to stay the same. Back in this area is where we are having water damage where it’s pretty much a flat roof. We’re going to put a 4 on 12” pitch just to, so we have to bring it up about two feet. But basically the roofline is going to stay the same with the rest of the house. (Inaudible)

Mr. Donnelly: Is the next house over on Oakwood setback a similar distance from the street?

Mr. Nucifore: Is that?

Ms. McGuirk: Well the next house on Oakwood is their front yard as opposed to our side yard.

Mr. Donnelly: What is that setback from the street, do you know off hand?

Mr. Nucifore: It’s about the same.

Mr. Donnelly: About the same, O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? O.K. I have the report from Orange County: Conditions and restrictions related to or incidental to the proposed use of the property may be imposed with the approval of an area variance to minimize any adverse impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and community. In this case the proposed action of a second story addition (providing it is designed in harmony with the existing structure) will not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhood, State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. Any further comments? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 9:31PM)
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(49-2-3) R-1

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Julie Mc Guirk at 509 Oakwood Road seeking an area variance for the front yard setback, increasing the degree of non-conformity to build a second story addition on home. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: I think we wrung them out pretty good about what they were intending to do.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

 Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

 Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY










CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 10:07  PM)
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(20-2-30.2) B & R-3 ZONES

Applicant seeking variances for front yards setbacks for existing non-conforming buildings for a three-lot subdivision and an interpretation of 185-19.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next item on the Agenda was held over from the October meeting (s/b November 21 meeting) is Michael O’Brien, 5266 Route 9W.

Mr. Brown: We were waiting for County referral.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. We did not at the time have the report from the County and we now have possession of that so I’ll read that. Conditions and restrictions related to or incidental to the proposed use of the property may be imposed with the approval of an area variance to minimize any adverse impacts to the surrounding neighborhood and community. In this case the proposed action of an area variance will not have any major impact upon the surrounding neighborhood, State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. It is unclear however what future plans the applicant has to the future subdivided lots. If the intention is to build residential, curb cuts should be located off of Orchard Drive. The County would also like to see future plans in regards to this subdivision. Could you respond to that?

Mr. Brown: The Planning Board has also referred the sub-division to County and right now there is no proposed construction with this, this is merely to separate out the existing buildings based upon the difference in Zoning. This is a split Zone lot. So, the front piece, which is the front portion of the existing lot, which is B zone, will become a lot in of itself. There’s two existing residences on the rear of the parcel. Those would each be on an individual lot so with this application there is no construction proposed. Any construction that was proposed would be back before the Planning Board for site plan approval if it was on the commercial piece or for sub-division approval if it was on the residential. And again, we would then be referred to the County again.

Chairperson Cardone: But, currently the second lot would be residential?

Mr. Brown: The rear view lots will both be residential, correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Correct. Do we have any questions from the Board on this application? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If not, I declare this part of the hearing closed. Thank you.              

  (Time Noted – 9:34 PM)

  (Time Noted – 9:34 PM)

Chairperson Cardone:  Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with Counsel regarding the legal questions raised by tonight’s applications. If I could ask you in the interest in time if you could step out into the hallway so that we don’t have to relocate and we could do this in a more timely fashion. 

(Time Noted – 9:35 PM)
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(20-2-30.2) B & R-3 ZONES

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Michael O’Brien at 5266 Route 9W seeking an area variance for front yard setback for an existing non-conforming building for a three-lot subdivision. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: Was this one we were waiting for the County, right?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s correct. Do we have any discussion on it? Do I have a motion?

Mr. Hughes: I move we approve it.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY










CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ.

           (Time Noted – 10:08 PM)

ZBA MEETING – DECEMBER 28, 2006

END OF MEETING 
                                            (Time Noted – 10:08 PM)



Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has had a chance to look at the minutes from last month. Are there any additions, deletions, corrections? 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, on page three.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, page three.

Mr. Hughes: The third paragraph, it says, ‘I live in the house next door’ and what I said was ‘I had lived in that house at one time’ … that needs to be corrected. 

Chairperson Cardone: All right. Any other corrections?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve the minutes as corrected?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve the minutes as corrected.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL H. DONNELLY, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

RUTH EATON

ROBERT KUNKEL

JAMES MANLEY









CAROLYN MARTINI, ESQ. 

Chairperson Cardone: This evening I received a brochure, I don’t know if anyone else received it on a Course that is going to given in Poughkeepsie on March the 8th. And, it’s a Practical Guide to Zoning & Land Use Law. If there is anyone who is interested in attending, please let me know so that I can do the necessary paperwork.

Mr. Hughes: Where is it at, in Poughkeepsie, does it say?

Chairperson Cardone: I am sure it does, at the Poughkeepsie Grand Hotel.

Mr. Hughes: By the Civic Center.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. You have time but get to me at some point next month so I can get the paperwork in on time.

Mr. Hughes: Are we done?

Chairperson Cardone: As soon as I close the meeting. Is there anything else? (No response.) O.K. Then, this meeting is adjourned until next month. 

 (Time Noted – 10:18 PM)

